DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATION

Background and Contact Information 

Complainants: 
Michael Lyons, Christine Lyons, Becky Lyons, and Equip for Equality are filing this Complaint alleging that Palatine Township High School District 211 in Illinois is inaccessible and otherwise guilty of discrimination. In addition to these Complainants, students of School District 211, their family members and friends, and other members of the general public also suffer ongoing discrimination due to the inaccessibility of School District 211.  Equip for Equality is the legal representative of the named Complainants.

Michael, Chris, and Becky Lyons

1436 Columbine Drive

Schaumburg, Illinois 60173

Phone:
(847) 517-2680 

E-mail:  Chrisglyons@yahoo.com
Equip for Equality

20 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 300

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Phone:   
(312) 341-0022 

Fax:
  
(312) 341-0295 

TTY:
(800) 610-2779 

E-mail:  
Alan@equipforequality.org
E-mail:  
Amy@equipforequality.org
E-mail:  
Contactus@equipforequality.org
Respondent: 
Palatine Township High School District 211 in Illinois.  This includes: James B. Conant High School, Fremd High School, Hoffman Estates High School, Palatine High School, and Schaumburg High School.

Palatine Township High School District 211

1750 South Roselle Road
Palatine, IL 60067
Phone: 847-359-3300

Nature of Complaint:
Past and Ongoing Violations of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 


1990 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS

In Re:  Complaint of Michael Lyons, Christine Lyons, Becky Lyons, and Equip for Equality against Palatine Township High School District 211 in Illinois alleging past and ongoing violations of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

COMPLAINT 

   
Michael Lyons, Christine Lyons, Becky Lyons, and Equip for Equality bring this complaint by their attorneys, Alan M. Goldstein and Amy F. Peterson of Equip for Equality, and complains against Palatine Township High School District 211 in Illinois, (hereinafter referred to as “School District 211”), as follows:

INTRODUCTION 

      
This case involves the inaccessibility of School District 211 including discrimination on the basis of disability and retaliation under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Both of these federal statutes require that School District 211 provide accessibility to students, their parents, family members, and friends, and other members of the public who attend events at School District 211. The ADA and Rehabilitation Act require that a Transition Plan be developed and implemented and that all alterations and modifications of the facilities of School District 211 provide accessibility for people with disabilities. This has not happened.  School District 211 has widespread rampant inaccessible features. A vague, bare-bones document called a “Transition Plan” was drafted but never implemented or acted upon in any discernable manner.  Numerous construction projects undertaken by School District 211 failed to incorporate accessible features as explicitly required by the ADA and Rehabilitation Act.  In fact, the Superintendent of School District 211 now readily admits that segregation on the basis of disability exists in the school district.  The problem is so severe and pervasive that School District 211 allows students who use wheelchairs to be carried up stairs by other students when attending sporting or other events.  There have been reports of School District 211 steering students with physical disabilities to Palatine High School, even if it is not their home High School, as it has better physical accessibility than other schools in School District 211. This attempt to utilize the concept of “program accessibility” to circumvent the ADA and Rehabilitation Act requirements that new construction and alterations provide accessibility is blatantly unlawful.    

     
This case is brought by Equip for Equality, the Illinois Protection and Advocacy Agency, and Michael Lyons and his family.  Michael Lyons has Multiple Sclerosis and uses a power wheelchair for mobility.  The Lyons have had two children attend and graduate from James B. Conant High School in School District 211 and have raised accessibility concerns for the seven years that their children attended Conant High School. However, other than some minor modifications, meaningful access has never been provided.  In fact, as recently as November 28, 2005, when declining to respond to a settlement demand from the Lyons family, School District 211 claimed to be in “full compliance” with the ADA and Rehabilitation Act.  Just a few months later, School District 211 publicly admitted an accessibility problem, including a “segregated” Special Education Department, yet still refused to discuss improving the situation with the Lyons family or Equip for Equality.  However, the past actions of School District 211 clearly demonstrate that the District will not fully comply with the ADA and Rehabilitation Act without federal oversight.  Problems throughout the past seven years demonstrate a profound lack of awareness concerning people with disabilities and accessibility issues requiring widespread ADA and disability awareness training for District 211 staff, as well as a deep need for accessibility improvements.  The violations alleged herein are ongoing and continuous.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

1 This is an action arising under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12115 et seq. (“ADA”), and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 791 et seq. (“Rehabilitation Act”).

2 Michael Lyons (“Michael”), Christine Lyons (“Christine”), and Becky Lyons (“Becky”) bring this complaint pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §12115 seeking a declaration that the public entity, School District 211, has illegally excluded Michael from participation in and denied Michael, Christine, and Becky the benefits of their services, programs, and activities and has discriminated against them because of his disability in violation of Title II of The ADA, and the Rehabilitation Act.

3 Equip for Equality brings this complaint on behalf of all persons with disabilities seeking access to and/or reasonable accommodations from School District 211 and the high schools it maintains.

4 School District 211 has failed to comply with the ADA and has discriminated against Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons and other persons with mobility impairments and other disabilities.  School District 211 has discriminated against persons with disabilities in numerous ways, including, but not limited to: 

a. Failing to design, construct, or alter facilities in a manner usable by and accessible to persons with disabilities.

b. Failing to provide program accessibility.

c. Failing to remove architectural barriers where readily achievable.

d. Renovating or altering a facility without providing accessible features. 

e. Failing to have an accessible website.

f. Failing to provide services in the most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of the individual with a disability.

g. Failing to allow individuals with disabilities a full and equal opportunity to participate in, and benefit from, its goods and services.

h. Failing to provide proper alternative means for services that are inaccessible.

i. Failing to make reasonable modifications to practices, policies, and procedures.

j. Failing to provide auxiliary aids and services when required, including providing accessible formats and appropriate ADA compliant signage.

k. On information and belief, steering students with physical disabilities to Palatine High School, even if it is not their home High School, as it has better physical accessibility than other schools in School District 211.

l. Failing to adequately train staff regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act, Rehabilitation Act, and other disability-related laws.

m. Failing to conduct the graduation ceremony at Conant High School in a way that provided access for people with disabilities to all events connected with the graduation.

n. Failing to provide accessible materials and facilities for continuing education classes.

o. Failing to have policies and procedures that comply with the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and other disability-related laws.

p. Failing to make reasonable accommodations or reasonable modifications to facilities, policies, and procedures.

q. Otherwise failing to ensure accessibility and compliance with the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and other disability-related laws.

5 School District 211 has retaliated against Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons as a result of the Lyons family’s efforts to ensure compliance with the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and other disability-related laws.

6 School District 211’s past, present, and continuing failure to provide appropriate access, restrooms, cafeterias, assembly areas, emergency services, classrooms, programs, services, and facilities to persons with disabilities at Conant High School violates the ADA. School District 211’s actions and inactions violate the Lyons’ family’s rights, and to the rights of other individuals with disabilities.  As a result of School District 211’s conduct, Michael has suffered by not being able to attend some of his children’s IEP meetings, as well as other activities and events, and he has suffered severe emotional pain, anguish, embarrassment and humiliation.

      JURISDICTION 

1. The Office for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education has jurisdiction over these claims since they arise out of the protections provided in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

2. Complainants’ claims for declaratory and other relief are authorized by 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202.

PARTIES 

1. Michael Lyons, his wife Christine Lyons, and their daughter Becky Lyons reside in Schaumburg, Illinois.  Michael and Christine Lyons are the parents of Becky Lyons a former high school student of School District 211.  Becky Lyons recently graduated from Conant High School in Hoffman Estates, Illinois.

2. Michael has multiple sclerosis, a military service connected disability, and uses a power wheelchair for mobility.

3. Michael is a qualified individual with a disability under the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act.

4. Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons and other individuals with disabilities have attended numerous events in School District 211 and intend to continue attending events in the School District.

5. Equip for Equality is the governor-designated protection and advocacy system for people with disabilities in the State of Illinois.

6. School District 211 is a public high school district with offices located at 1750 S. Roselle Road, Palatine, Illinois.  School District 211 operates five high schools including Conant High School.  The other four high schools in School District 211 are: Fremd High School, Hoffman Estates High School, Palatine High School, and Schaumburg High School.

7. School District 211 is responsible for complying with the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act district-wide.

8. School District 211 is a governmental and public entity under Title II of the ADA and is a recipient of federal funding under the Rehabilitation Act.

THE LAWS INVOLVED
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 

1. The ADA contains four substantive Titles that address discrimination in the areas of employment, public services, public accommodations and commercial facilities, and telecommunications.  Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and Equip for Equality bring this complaint under Title II of the ADA, which governs public services and protects individuals from discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities. The law governing Title II is found at 42 U.S.C. § 12115 et seq. and is codified at 28 C.F.R. § 35.101 et seq. 

2. All new construction or alterations of Title II entities, including existing School District facilities, must be done in a manner so that facilities are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Id.

3. Pursuant to the ADA, School District 211 cannot discriminate against Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons or other persons with disabilities based solely on the disabilities. 42 U.S.C. § 12182 (a).

4. Pursuant to the ADA, School District 211 was required to remove architectural barriers and otherwise modify the facilities at Conant High School, Hoffman Estates, Illinois and to otherwise come into compliance with The ADA by January 26, 1992. 42 U.S.C. § 12182 (b) (2) (A) (iv).

THE REHABILITATION ACT

1. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act is intended to end discrimination against individuals with disabilities and applies to recipients of federal funding. 29 U.S.C. § 794.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
1. Conant High School and other facilities in School District 211 are not accessible to Michael Lyons and other individuals with disabilities under the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act.

2. Michael Lyons has been unable to attend several functions at Conant High School where his daughter Becky Lyons was a senior in the 2005-2006 school year. For example, Michael Lyons:

a. Missed an awards ceremony of Becky’s in March 2005 because it was held in an inaccessible music room that was located at the bottom of a flight of stairs. 

b. Endured years of isolation and segregation as a spectator during football games because the only accessible seating was located far away from where most spectators sit. A ramp to the stands in the football stadium was installed within the past few years but was placed on the side of the stands furthest from the accessible parking, over one hundred twenty yards from the accessible parking.

c. Is currently confined to sitting in the worst seats in the auditorium for plays and other events that are held there. 

d. Was unable to attend some IEP meetings for his daughter as they were held in the Special Education Department, which is only accessible via stairs.

e. Was unable to attend Becky’s Track awards two and three years ago because they were held in the lower (North) gym, which is down a flight of approximately fifteen stairs..

f. Was isolated from other parents watching swim events because the spectator seating is on the second floor, up a long flight of stairs. Michael had to sit next to the pool in an area not meant for seating causing damage to the motorized portion of his wheelchair..

g. Has been humiliated on occasions when he was forced to enter the high school building through the loading dock damaging his wheelchair in the process.

h. Has been humiliated on occasions when he and his family was forced to frantically search for an employee with an elevator key to access the auditorium performances.

i. Has been humiliated and endangered on occasions when he a has become trapped on the second floor when frantically searching for an employee with an elevator and fire door keys to exit Conant High School following auditorium performances.

j. Has had difficulty accessing basketball games, College nights, and other events in the main gymnasium.

k. Witnessed other individuals with disabilities being carried up stairs and entering through the loading dock to attend events, a dangerous and unlawful method of providing access.

1. Many of the inaccessible features of Conant are a result of construction alterations and renovations that took place after passage of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. These alterations were not done in an accessible manner as legally mandated by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and Title II of the ADA.

2. Michael, Christine and Becky have been bringing accessibility issues to the District’s attention from 1999 through the present date . Michael and Christine Lyons have made many telephone calls and wrote letters to the District about accessibility issues, and Christine Lyons attended meetings at District headquarters in attempts to resolve some of the accessibility problems, to no avail.

3. The District has been largely unresponsive to the issues raised by Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons.

4. Rather than implementing a policy or procedure to provide program accessibility as required by the ADA, 42 U.S.C. §12132, on March 8, 2005, then principal Joseph F. Schlender of Conant High School suggested that the Student Services Department could develop a plan for students to self identify their parents who might need access or assistance, as a means of addressing some of the complaints raised by Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons. (A copy of the letter of March 8, 2005 is attached as Exhibit A).

5. This plan is inappropriate as it violates confidentiality provisions regarding medical information, would not provide access for people with disabilities who attend events and are not members of a student’s immediate family, and for numerous other reasons.  

6. On April 14, 2005, Equip for Equality sent a letter to the District citing the inaccessibility of Conant High School and District 211, and including a Freedom of Information request seeking documentation about the District’s ADA Transition Plan and work done by the District since the plan was completed.

7. From documents obtained through the Freedom of Information request as well as from other sources, Michael and Equip for Equality learned that School District 211 had an ADA Transition Plan in effect since January 1993. However, virtually none of the work identified to be done at Conant High School had in fact been accomplished by the date of this Complaint.

8. In March 2005, Michael complained to District 211 when he was not able to watch Becky perform a solo in The Conant Solo and Ensemble Festival Band Festival on March 5, 2005 since it was held in an inaccessible location even though prior notice had been provided to the high school that Michael Lyons would be attending to watch his daughter perform.  Christine Lyons met with the Band Director Jon Walsh and Principal Joseph Schlender to share her concerns. The Band Director later told Mrs. Lyons that the principal had “called him on the carpet” for holding Becky’s solo performance in the inaccessible basement choir room. 

9. The following fall semester (2005), the Band Director retaliated against Becky Lyons by lowering her “chair” or position in the band, twice, despite reporting at her December IEP meeting that she was receiving a grade of “A” for the second quarter and an “A” on her final examination. 

10. In addition, Becky was originally given a grade of “B” on her report card for this same time period despite having an “A” grade for both quarters and on the final examination. 

11. When Christine Lyons objected to the principal that Becky Lyons received a lower grade than she obviously deserved due to retaliation for enforcing federally guaranteed rights, Becky’s grade was promptly changed back to an A within one day.

12. Equip for Equality sent another letter to the District on July 19, 2005 suggesting in part that the District complete an accessibility survey so that the Transition Plan could be updated and enforced. 

13. On September 30, 2005, Christine Lyons and Equip for Equality met with School District 211 personnel for a walk-through at James B. Conant High School.  They observed many violations of Section 504 and the ADA, and noted that many inaccessible features mentioned in the District’s Transition Plan some 12 years earlier had still not been corrected.  These inaccessible features included:

a. Missing curb ramps.

b. Access to the Special Education Department only via a flight of stairs. 

c. Missing or misleading exterior and interior signs.

d. Failure to provide TTY/TTD devices and the failure to include the TTY/TTD number in all publications.

e. Inaccessible exterior and interior entrances, doors, doorways, and paths of travel, including the main school entrance and after-hour entrances.

f. Many classrooms, often due to stairs.

g. Many restrooms.

h. The elevator outside the gym area.

i. The Auditorium Theater is inaccessible regarding its seating arrangements and policies.  In addition, the accessible entrance is often locked.

j. Other Assembly Areas and facilities as most, if not all, Assembly Areas have no wheelchair seating spaces, no Assistive Listening Systems, no movable armrests, and lack other legal requirements.

14. On November 1, 2005 Equip for Equality sent a demand letter to the District outlining the accessibility problems at Conant and the District, and suggesting a means to settle the dispute short of litigation. 

15. On November 28, 2005 the District’s attorney responded to the demand letter by stating, “…The District is in full compliance with the requirements of Section 504 and Title II of the ADA.  The District’s services, programs and activities, when viewed in their entirety, are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities.” (A copy of the two-page letter of November 28, 2005 is attached as Exhibit B).

16. The District did not agree to take any concrete actions in its response other than agreeing “…to provide a telephone number and a TTY number for people to request accommodations.”

17. Even after this promise, the notice the District sent out in April 2006 to announce the 2006 graduation ceremony contained no telephone number or TTY number for people to request any needed accommodations for the ceremony. 

18. This graduation notice also repeatedly used the inappropriate word “handicapped” rather than the commonly acceptable term “person with a disability.”  (A copy of the graduation notice is attached as Exhibit C).

19. Despite School District 211 statements on November 28, 2005 that the District was in “full compliance” with the ADA and Rehabilitation Act, on April 13, 2006, Superintendent Thornton stated in page one of a five-page letter to the School Board that the high school buildings host a “…plethora of outside activities that need to occur on our very restricted school sites.” On page two of that same letter, Dr. Thornton admits that the “…handicapped (sic) accessibility issues…have been present for a number of years.” (A copy of the five-page letter of April 13, 2006 is attached as Exhibit D).

20. Even though this letter demonstrates some intent by School District 211 to improve accessibility, the District’s extensive history of widespread non-compliance and refusal to incorporate accessibility concerns in new construction, renovations, and existing facilities amply demonstrates that full compliance will not be achieved without federal oversight of School District 211’s actions. 

21. On April 21, 2006, the Conant school newspaper criernews quoted School District 211 Superintendent Thornton as saying “We have a significant handicapped (sic) accessibility issue at Conant.”  Dr. Thornton admitted that, “The Special Education Department has been segregated.” Dr. Thornton is presumably referring the fact that the Special Education Department is segregated because it is a distinctly separate area away from any other classrooms or school activities and is only accessible via stairs. (A copy of page two the April 21, 2006 newspaper article is attached as Exhibit E). 

22. On May 18, 2006, Michael and Christine Lyons attended the Honors Convocation ceremony of Becky Lyons at Conant High School and attended Becky Lyons’ Graduation Ceremony on June 4, 2006. The ceremony and related events on these days included poor event planning that did not take into account the needs of Michael Lyons and other individuals with disabilities.  As a result there was an insufficient amount of accessible seating, an insufficient amount of accessible parking, and poor traffic flow for individuals attending these events. Including Michael Lyons, there were approximately several hundred attendees who used wheelchairs at these events who were required to sit in inferior and segregated seating areas that offered inadequate and obstructed lines of sight to the proceedings. Mr. Lyons could not attend the receptions following the graduation ceremony and honors convocation because there was no accessible path of travel to the location of the reception.  

23. School District 211 does not have proper interior or exterior signage under the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and related regulations and guidelines.

24. The facilities and services of Conant High School and School District 211 are inaccessible to Michael and other individuals with disabilities.

25. On information and belief, School District 211 spent approximately $900,000.00 in 2001 to build brick entry canopies at the main entrances to Conant High School and a clock tower but did not provide full accessibility as part of these modifications and alterations.

26. Due to these and other inaccessible features in School District 211’s facilities, and due to their failure to make reasonable accommodations and modifications to policies, practices, and procedures as required by law, Conant High School and School District 211 is inaccessible under the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and related regulations and guidelines. 

27. The services, programs, policies, and facilities provided by School District 211 are unlawfully discriminatory and in violation of Title II of the ADA, and the Rehabilitation Act.

28. Michael and Christine Lyons spoke with School District 211 personnel on numerous occasions since 1999, the year their first child Matthew Lyons enrolled at Conant High School, in attempts to resolve these problems but major access problems continue through the present date.

29. As a direct and proximate result of the inaccessibility of School District 211, and the actions and inactions of its staff, Michael has been unable to attend certain IEP meetings for his children, as well as other activities and events, he has been inconvenienced and treated differently than persons without disabilities at other events, and has become upset and damaged emotionally due to the District 211’s failure to comply with the ADA, the Rehabilitation Act, and other relevant laws.

30. Due to the actions and inactions of School District 211 alleged herein, District 211 has discriminated against the Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and other individuals with disabilities and excluded them from participating in, or enjoying the benefits of, its services, programs, and activities in violation of the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act. 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.; 29 U.S.C. § 794 (as amended).

31. Despite the Lyons’ frequent requests to improve its accessibility, and even though the Rehabilitation Act was passed in 1973, and the ADA was passed in 1990, School District 211 has taken little or no action to remove architectural barriers other than some very recent, minor activities. 

32. On information and belief, School District 211 has no detailed plan to make necessary reasonable modifications, reasonable accommodations, and structural changes in the future in order to provide the accessibility required by law.  

33. School District 211 has denied Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and other individuals with disabilities the opportunity to participate as a member of planning or advisory boards addressing accessibility issues despite several requests from Christine Lyons to have this opportunity. 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(1)(vi).

34. School District 211 has utilized “criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of subjecting qualified individuals with disabilities to discrimination on the basis of disability.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(3)(i).

35. School District 211 has utilized “criteria or methods of administration that have the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of the public entity’s program with respect to individuals with disabilities.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(3)(ii).

36. School District 211 has failed to afford goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages, or accommodations in the “most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified individuals with disabilities.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(8)(d). For example, the District held some of Becky’s IEP meetings in inaccessible meeting rooms.

37. School District 211 has excluded or denied “equal services, programs, or activities” to Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and other individuals with disabilities “because of the known disability of an individual with whom the individual or entity is known to have a relationship or association.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(g).

38. School District 211 has failed to “maintain in working condition those features of facilities and equipment that are required to be readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities,” including but not limited maintaining the “working condition” of the elevator at Conant High School. 28 C.F.R. § 35.133(a).

39. School District 211 has discriminated against Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons by engaging in retaliatory conduct in violation of 28 C.F.R. § 35.134(a), (b).

40. School District 211 has discriminated against Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons, and other individuals with disabilities by excluding them from participating in, or benefiting from the “services, programs, or activities” of School District 211 by having facilities that “are inaccessible to or usable by individuals with disabilities.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.149.

41. School District 211 has discriminated against Michael, Christine, and Becky Lyons, and other individuals with disabilities by not having services, programs or activities that are “readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.150(a), (b). 

42. School District 211 has failed to undertake structural changes within the time frames provided by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.150(c).

43. School District 211 has failed to implement or update its Transition Plan as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.150(d).

44. School District 211 has performed construction, alterations, and modifications after the effective dates of the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act that were not “designed and constructed in such a manner that the facility or part of the facility is readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities,” including individuals who use wheelchairs.  As a result, School District 211 has failed to comply with legal accessibility requirements when constructing, modifying, or altering facilities as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 36.151.

45. School District 211 has failed to take “appropriate steps to ensure that communications with applicants, participants, and members of the public with disabilities are as effective as communications with others” as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.160(a).

46. School District 211 has failed to “furnish appropriate auxiliary aids and services where necessary to afford an individual with a disability an equal opportunity to participate in, and enjoy the benefits of, a service, program, or activity conducted by a public entity” as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.160(b).  For example, the District does not provide TTYs or TTDs, and does not, upon information and belief, provide publications in alternative formats.

47. School District 211 has failed to install or properly utilize TTYs, TDDs or equally effective telecommunication systems to communicate with individuals with impaired hearing or speech as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.161.

48. School District 211 has failed to provide appropriate signage as required by law. 28 C.F.R. § 35.163.

49. School District 211 has failed update or implement the self-evaluation required under the Rehabilitation Act and the ADA. 28 C.F.R. § 35.105.

50. School District 211 has failed to adopt appropriate and effective grievance procedures as required under the Rehabilitation Act and the ADA.  Further, School District 211 has failed to provide information to the public regarding either of these requirements. 28 C.F.R. § 35.107.

51. School District 211 has failed to offer Michael IEP meeting locations accessible to persons with disabilities or to offer alternative accessible arrangements for him. 42 U.S.C. § 12309, 28 C.F.R. § 35.130.

52. School District 211 fails and continues to fail to have appropriate policies for providing accessible facilities and services.  Further, School District 211 has failed to provide for the availability of any other alternative methods of accommodation in violation of the ADA. 28 C.F.R. § 35.101 et seq. 

53. School District 211’s facilities, practices, policies, and procedures, described above, violate the rights of Michael, Christine, Becky, and other individuals with disabilities that are secured by § 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the ADA by discriminating against him, his family, and other individuals with disabilities solely on the basis of disability.

RELIEF SOUGHT
77.
Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and Equip for Equality request a finding that Illinois

      High School District 211’s practices, policies, and procedures in the past have resulted in a public entity that has subjected, and continues to subject Michael, Christine and Becky Lyons and other persons with disabilities to discrimination because of their disabilities in violation  of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12115 et seq., and § 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 791 et seq. 

78. Therefore, School District 211 should be required to:

a. Update the District’s ADA Transition Plan, which is over ten years old. The plan should detail how the District will become accessible and come into compliance with all relevant federal, state, and local laws, with a timetable for plan implementation, to include the following:

1. Identification of barriers to access, whether physical or otherwise, and have provisions so that appropriate policies, practices, and procedures are in place to provide reasonable accommodations or reasonable modifications to ensure that access is provided to all school-related events;

1. A grievance procedure for resolving accessibility complaints. This procedure should include enforcement remedies and should detail the sequence of events through which complaints may be addressed. 28 C.F.R. § 35.107(b);

1. A plan for immediately providing signage at all appropriate interior and exterior locations at each of its facilities. Signage should be installed directing users to an accessible entrance or to information about accessible facilities where there is inaccessibility. 28 C.F.R. § 35.163(b);

1. A plan to ensure that all new construction and renovations will be accessible;

1. A plan to ensure that each program, service, or activity, when viewed in its entirety, is readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. 28 C.F.R. § 35.150;

1. The designation of a responsible employee at the district administrative offices and each of its high schools to coordinate its efforts to comply and carry out ADA responsibilities. 28 C.F.R. § 35.107(a);

1. Provisions to notify students, friends, family members, and other interested persons of their rights and the school district’s obligations under Title II of the ADA. 28 C.F.R. § 35.106;

1. Provisions for providing training of Staff on disability awareness and access issues;

2. A plan to include that all communication be available in alternate formats to ensure that persons with impaired vision or hearing, can obtain information as to the existence and location of accessible services, activities, and facilities. 28CFR § 35.163; and

3. Any other appropriate actions.

a. Address the following at Conant High School:

1. Complete a self-evaluation of Conant High School physical facilities and policies, practices, and procedures to identify barriers to access, whether physical or otherwise, and have provisions to provide reasonable accommodations or reasonable modifications to ensure that access is provided to all school-related events.

1. Provide appropriate signage for entrances, exits, and seating;

1. Institute an emergency evacuation plan that includes provisions for evacuating individuals with disabilities;

1. Ensure that all main entrance and exits at the high school are accessible including providing doors that comply with ADA specifications;

1. Provide curb cuts for access to the sidewalks from the parking lots;

1. Make the Special Education Department accessible for people with disabilities;

1. Fix access problems with the elevator at Conant;

1. Provide for access to the stage in the Auditorium;

1. Provide wheelchair seating on the main floor of the Auditorium with accessible features and an accessible path of travel;

1. Provide for access to the gym after hours;

1. Provide accessible seating for the pool viewing area;

1. Move the accessible seating in the football stadium from the furthest point away from the parking lot, to the closest; 

1. Provide accessible concession windows at the football field; and

2. Any other relief that is appropriate and just.

a. Take the following actions on a district-wide basis:

1. Remove architectural barriers; 

2. Install integrated and accessible facilities and services to make them readily accessible to and useable by individuals with disabilities; 

3. Modify policies, practices, and procedures to provide for accessibility; 

4. Institute a formal grievance plan for concerns regarding access.

5. Institute policies and procedures regarding the provision of reasonable accommodations and modifications, including at a minimum ensuring that information distributed regarding all programs and events contains a statement regarding the availability of reasonable accommodations and modifications and provides a telephone number and a TTY number for people to call in and request these.

6. Provide an accessible website that complies with the standards set by Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act;

7. Schedule all District events (including school meetings; assemblies; conferences; athletic events; musical and theater performances; adult education; Market Days; awards ceremonies, and other school-related events) only in accessible locations that include an accessible path of travel from all open entrances and exits.

8. Provide reasonable accommodations, reasonable modifications, auxiliary aids and services, and materials in accessible formats where necessary; 

9. Institute ADA Awareness and Sensitivity Training for its employees, staff, and other relevant individuals;

10. Make appropriate public announcements of their past violations and intended future compliance with the applicable laws;

11. Make efforts to encourage and attract people with disabilities to attend School District 211 as students, employees, and visitors;

12. Refrain from spending funds on additional facilities until its present facilities comply with applicable laws;

13. Fully comply with the ADA and the Rehabilitation Act; 

14. Discontinue the District’s discriminatory practices; 

15. Organize a committee of concerned students, parents, alumni, and other interested individuals to address accessibility issues. This committee should include individuals with disabilities, (including parents, students, and community members); and 

16. Any other appropriate actions to ensure compliance with the law.

WHEREFORE, Complainants seek that the United States Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights investigate the allegations alleged herein regarding School District 211 and grant the remedies requested.

Respectfully Submitted on Behalf of Equip for Equality and Michael, Chris and Becky Lyons, 

_______________________________                             


Alan M. Goldstein,



Senior Attorney at Equip for Equality                             


Equip for Equality 

Alan M. Goldstein, Senior Attorney

Amy F. Peterson, Senior Attorney

20 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 300

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Phone:   
(312) 341-0022 

Fax:
  
(312) 341-0295 

TTY:
(800) 610-2779 

E-mail:  
Alan@equipforequality.org
E-mail:  
Amy@equipforequality.org
E-mail:  
Contactus@equipforequality.org 
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